
 

TIRZ BOARD 1 & 2 REGULAR MEETING 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

Thursday, January 13, 2022 at 4:30 PM 
BOARD ROOM | 1112 7th Street 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity, sustainability, 
and health of the community. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER & CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES SUMMARY 

1. Accept minute summary from the December 21, 2021 TIRZ #1 & #2 Board 
Meeting. 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Review and take any necessary action on an amendment under the terms of the 
approved development agreement for Phase II between Reinvestment Zone 
Number One (TIRZ #1), City of Bay City, and Sal Holdings, LLC. 

3. Discuss, consider, and/or recomment approval of expanding the TIRZ #1 
territory. DC Dunham, Sal Holdings 

4. Discuss, consider, and/or ratify a Professional Service Agreement with David 
Pettit, DPED. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Special Called Meeting was posted on the front window 
of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Monday, January 10, 2020 before 4:30 p.m. 
Any questions concerning the above items, please contact Mayor Robert K. Nelson at (979) 245-
2137. 

Page 1



 
 
Agenda TIRZ Board 1 & 2 Regular Meeting January 13, 2022 
 

 
AGENDA NOTICES: 

Action by Council Authorized: 

The City Council may vote and/or act upon any item within this Agenda. The Council reserves the right 
to retire into executive session concerning any of the items listed on this Agenda, pursuant to and in 
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.071, to seek the advice of its attorney about 
pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offer or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the 
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
conflict with the Open Meetings Act and may invoke this right where the City Attorney, the Mayor or a 
majority of the Governing Body deems an executive session is necessary to allow privileged consultation 
between the City Attorney and the governing body, if considered necessary and legally justified under 
the Open Meetings Act. The City Attorney may appear in person or appear in executive session by 
conference call in accordance with applicable state law.  
 

Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: 

It is anticipated that members of other city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the 
meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or 
committees. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a 
meeting of the other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in 
attendance. The members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions 
on the same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that board, 
commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

Executive Sessions Authorized: 

This agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject 
in any Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government 
Code Chapter 551 by legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney 
that the items discussed therein may be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering 
available opinions of a court of record and opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney. 
This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent to meet all elements necessary to satisfy 
Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by all participants in reliance 
on this opinion. The facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces available. Request 
for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact 
the City Secretary's Office at 979-245-5311 or email, citysecretary@cityofbaycity.org for further 
information. 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson 

City Secretary 

Page 2



 
Minutes TIRZ Board 1 & 2 Regular Meeting  December 21, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 1 

CALL TO ORDER & CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

The Board Meeting for TIRZ #1 & #2 was called to order by Vice-Chair DC Dunham. 

Quorum present: 

PRESENT 
DC Dunham 
William Cornman 
Samantha Denbow 
Craig Hlavinka 
Kent Pollard 
Bryan Prochnow 
Jim Folse 
 
ABSENT 
Julie Estlinbaum 
Edward "Bubba" Cook 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve the agenda, Seconded by Jim Folse. Voting Yea: 
DC Dunham, William Cornman, Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan 
Prochnow. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Stuart Lynn, SAL Holdings, stated that he has met with the City Manager and Mayor regarding 
their 380 agreement and Valor Park. They will be making it part of TIRZ #1 and that area does 
not have to be contingent. They will be bringing to the board soon. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES SUMMARY OF TIRZ #1 

1. Accept minute summary from the November 9, 2021 TIRZ #1 Board Meeting. 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve the minutes summary of November 9, 
2021 TIRZ #1 Board Meeting, Seconded by Kent Pollard. Voting Yea: JDC Dunham, 
William Cornman, Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan Prochnow. 
Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES SUMMARY OF TIRZ #2 

Page 3

ITEM #1.



 
Minutes TIRZ Board 1 & 2 Regular Meeting  December 21, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

2. Accept minute summary from the November 9, 2021 TIRZ #2 Board Meeting. 

Motion made by Kent Pollard to approve the minutes summary of November 9, 2021 
TIRZ #2 Board Meeting, Seconded by William Cornman. Voting Yea: JDC Dunham, 
William Cornman, Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan Prochnow. 
Motion carried. 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL - TIRZ #1: 

3. Discuss and consider the hiring of a landscape architect and approval for 
reimbursement in lieu of line items in the current Development Agreement. DC 
Dunham, SAL Holdings 

DC Dunham, SAL Holdings, stated that after several meetings with the Committee, 
they concluded that it would be best to have an engineering/architecture firm do the 
landscape designs. She requested that $20,000 be re-allocated from greenscape 
items of the development agreement to use towards the architect. The amended 
development agreement will need to be presented to the City Council. 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve the reallocation of funds, not to exceed 
$20,000, to use towards landscape architecture in the Development agreement, 
Seconded by Kent Pollard. Voting Yea: DC Dunham, William Cornman, Samantha 
Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan Prochnow. Motion carried. 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL - TIRZ #2: 

4. Consider and/or recommend approval of TIRZ #2 Final Amended Project and 
Financing Plan (PFP). David Pettit 

David Pettit, DPED, presented and summarized the amended PFP. 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve and recommend the TIRZ #2 Final 
Amended Project Financing Plan, Seconded by Kent Pollard. Voting Yea: DC 
Dunham, William Cornman, Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan 
Prochnow. Motion carried. 

5. Consider and/or recommend approval of TIRZ #2 Reimbursement Agreement 
with Bold Fox. 

David Pettit, DPED, presented Reimbursement Agreement with Bold Fox and 
summarized priorities of payments and when Bold Fox get reimbursed. Alex Kamkar, 
Bold Fox, also summarized the agreement and financial backing he has already 
received.  

Page 4

ITEM #1.



 
Minutes TIRZ Board 1 & 2 Regular Meeting  December 21, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

Julie Estlinbaum, Board Chair, arrived during discusstions 

Motion made by William Cornman to approve and recommend the TIRZ #2 
Reimbursement Agreement with Bold Fox. Seconded by Jim Folse. Voting Yea: Julie 
Estlinbaum, DC Dunham, William Cornman, Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent 
Pollard, Bryan Prochnow. Motion carried. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

TIRZ #1 Board will meet again on Thursday, January 13th at 4:30 pm. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Craig Hlavinka to adjourn both the TIRZ #1 and the TIRZ #2 meeting, 
Seconded by Kent Pollard. Voting Yea: Julie Estlinbaum, DC Dunham, William Cornman, 
Samantha Denbow, Craig Hlavinka, Kent Pollard, Bryan Prochnow. Motion carried. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 2022. 

 

   

JULIE ESTLINBAUM.; BOARD CHAIRMAN 

TIRZ BOARD #2 

JEANNA THOMPSON 

CITY SECRETARY 

 

Page 5

ITEM #1.



DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE AN AMENDMENT UNDER THE TERMS 

OF THE APPROVED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR PHASE II. 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

  

 

BACKGROUND:   

On July 17, 2019, the TIRZ Board recommended approval of a Developer Agreement between 

City of Bay City and SAL Holding, LLC for the development of Cottonwood Park. Exhibit C 

provides an estimate of Phase I and Phase II. City Council approved agreement on September 12, 

2019. Phase II has an estimated cost of $100,000 when complete. Reimbursements are limited to 

the amount approved by this agreement. 

On December 21, 2021, the TIRZ Board recommended a new project type (landscaping) that was 

not part of the original estimated project costs.  

______________________________________________________________________ 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Max Reimbursement remaining is 65,855.94 for Phase II 

RECOMMENDATION: TIRZ Board recommends amending Exhibit C of the Project Plan 

ATTACHMENTS: Developer Agreement; Exhibit C of Development Agreement (Amended) 

 

Page 6

ITEM #2.



Exhibit C - Phase II - Amended

Phase II estimated costs of public green space and park area:

TIRZ Project Plan Project Description by Developer

Street & Intersection 
Improvements Sidewalks / Entryways 20,167.68$               

Storm Water Facilities 
and Improvements Drainage / Culvert work 13,976.38$               
Open Space, Park and 
Recreation Facilities & 
Improvements Green space Landscape Architect* 20,000.00$               
Open Space, Park and 
Recreation Facilities & 
Improvements Sculptures* 40,000.00$               
Open Space, Park and 
Recreation Facilities & 
Improvements Miscellaneous / Contingency* 5,855.94$                 

Total estimated phase II costs* 100,000.00$             

Page 7

ITEM #2.



Page 8

ITEM #2.



Page 9

ITEM #2.



Page 10

ITEM #2.



Page 11

ITEM #2.



Page 12

ITEM #2.



Page 13

ITEM #2.



Page 14

ITEM #2.



Page 15

ITEM #2.



Page 16

ITEM #2.



Page 17

ITEM #2.



Page 18

ITEM #2.



Page 19

ITEM #2.



Page 20

ITEM #2.



Page 21

ITEM #2.



 

1221 Avenue F, Bay City TX 77414 
979-245-8900 – www.Lynn-Development.com 

 

January 5, 2022 

 

Shawna Burkhart, City Manager  

City of Bay City 

City Manager’s Office 

1901 5th Street 

Bay City, Texas 77465 

 

Dear Ms. Burkhart, 

SAL Holdings, LLC is requesting the expansion of the TIRZ #1 boundary to include approximately 58 acres 

in Exhibit A.  We would like to be put on the agenda for the next TIRZ #1 Meeting on January 13, 2022. 

Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Thank you, 

D. C. Dunham 

Lynn Group 

O 361-972-0123 

O 979.245.8900 

C 979.479.0165 

dc.dunham@lynngroup.com 

  

Page 22

ITEM #3.

mailto:dc.dunham@lynngroup.com


 

Page 23

ITEM #3.



Page 24

ITEM #4.



Page 25

ITEM #4.



Page 26

ITEM #4.



Page 27

ITEM #4.



Page 28

ITEM #4.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	Minutes of 12/21/21 TIRZ 1 & 2
	TIRZ Board 1 & 2 Regular Meeting Minutes 211221 DRAFT

	ITEM #2.	Copy of Sal Holding Development Agreement Amendment Phase 2 - TIRZ 1
	Executive Summary- SAL Holding Phase II Amendment  1-2022
	Phase II expenses Exhibit C_Amendment
	TIRZ #1 - Development Financing Agreement with SAL Holdings - 7-2019

	ITEM #3.	TIRZ #1 Expansion
	Lynn Development letter requesting TIRZ #1

	ITEM #4.	PSA Ratification
	DPED PSA TIRZ 1

	Bottom

